
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  
February 1, 2016 

7:00 PM 
Claremont City Hall 

 
 
  

AGENDA 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
3. INVOCATION- Pastor Jason Sigmon, Visitation Pastor at Mt. Calvary Lutheran Church 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
5. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA    

A. Regular Meeting Minutes –January 4, 2016  
B. Special Called Meeting Minutes- January 12, 2016 

 
7. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 
8. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Budget Transfer 
B. Resolution 18-15 Poppelmann Lease Agreement 
 

9. PRESENTATIONS 
A. Mayor’s Proclamation Supporting the Carolina Panthers 
B. 2014-2015 Audit Presentation 
C. Claremont Demographic & Economic Data Profile 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
        A. Resolution 15-15 Surplus Property to be sold via GovDeals 
        B. Resolution 16-15 Surplus Property to be sold to Bethlehem Fire Department 
        C. Ordinance 09-15 Amending the FY 15/16 Budget 
        D. Resolution 17-15 Authorizing NC IDF Grant Application 
        E. Call for Public Hearing Ref: Zoning Amendment 
        F. Approval of the Amended Audit Contract 
        G. Park and Recreation Master Plan Review 
        H. Update on Wastewater Needs Analysis 
                             
  11. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 A. Department Dashboard Report  
 
 
12. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

         A. Committee and Bylaw Updates 
 



13. CLOSED SESSION 
     A. G.S. 143-318.11(6) Personnel 
 
14. ADJOURN 



EXHIBIT 6 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Wendy Helms, City Clerk  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Consent Agenda 
 
1. Regular Session Minutes – January 4, 2016 
2. Special Called Meeting Minutes- January 12, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Approve as Presented    

 
 
 
 



   

Monday, January 4, 2016                                 Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 1 of 3 

 
City of Claremont Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, January 4, 2016 
 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the Council Chambers located at 
Claremont City Hall at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, January 4, 2016. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor Shawn Brown, 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Dayne Miller, Councilmember Lee Miller and 
Councilmember David Morrow.  Councilmember Dale Sherrill was excused from the meeting. 
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Catherine Renbarger, 
City Clerk Wendy Helms, Police Chief Gary Bost, Fire Chief Bart Travis, Public Services Director Tom 
Winkler, Captain Allen Long, Recreation Coordinator Michael Orders, Finance Officer Stephanie Corn, 
Bo Prince, City Planner Elinor Hiltz and City Attorney Bob Grant. 
 
Others in attendance were: Robert Smith, Charles Helms, Rupert Little, Rev. Dennis Richards, Robert 
Winrow, Melanie Starr andGene Monday. 
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Shawn R. Brown called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
  The agenda was then approved as presented. 
 
 
3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The invocation was given by Reverend Dennis Richards from First Baptist Church.  Councilmember 
Lee Miller led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
5. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Brown informed those in attendance that a $400 donation had been made to the Claremont 
School Backpack Program in honor of outgoing Councilmember D.B. Setzer and Nicky Setzer. 
 
 
 
 



   

Monday, January 4, 2016                                 Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 2 of 3 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. December 14, 2015, Regular Meeting Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion 
to accept December 14, 2015 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember Dayne Miller 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
B. December 14, 2015, Closed Session Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion 
to accept the closed session minutes from December 14, 2015 as presented.  Councilmember Dayne 
Miller seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
7. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS & COMMENTS- none 
 
 
8.  OLD BUSINESS-  
 
A. Budget Transfer- Transfer of funds were made to allocate addition fund for payment to Harris 
Software for water and sewer billing and to increase Administrations travel and training budget to 
account for additional travel and training during the year.  Informational only. 
 
 
9. PRESENTATIONS- 
 
A.  Preliminary 2014-2015 Audit Update- Melanie Starr gave Council a brief overview of the 2014-
2015 audit.  She will return in February to give a full presentation with completed financial statements. 
  
 
10. NEW BUSINESS-  
 
A. Re-appointment to Fire Department Relief Board- General Statue 58-84-30 (2) states that the Mayor 
and board of alderman or other local governing body shall appoint two representatives to the Fire 
Department Relief Board, one to hold office for two years and one to hold office for one year, and each 
year in January thereafter they shall appoint only one representative and his term of office shall 
be for two years. 
 
Claremont Fire Department asked Council to consider the re-appointment of Rupert Little and Libby 
Connor to these positions on the Fire Department Relief Board.  Motion was made by Councilmember 
David Morrow to re-appoint Rupert Little and Libby Connor to the Claremont Fire Department Relief 
Board.  Second was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
B. 2015-2016 Departmental Goals Update- Department heads were given an opportunity to discuss the 
goals of their department at the mid –point of the year. 
 
 
11. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A.  Monthly Department Dashboard Report- The dashboard report was accepted as presented. 
 
  
 
 



   

Monday, January 4, 2016                                 Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 3 of 3 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT –  
 
A. Second Quarter Financial Update- Catherine gave a brief over view of the City financials after the 
second quarter of the 2015-2016 fiscal year.  
 
B. NCDOT Mowing Contract- The first year of the NCDOT Mowing Contract has been completed.  
The City is due a reimbursement from the NCDOT of around $1400.  The City would like to continue 
with the contract. 
 
 
13. ADJOURN 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.  Second 
was made by Councilmember Lee Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 
        
 
 
____________________________    
Shawn R. Brown, Mayor       
 
 
Attested: 
 
____________________________ 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 



   

Tuesday, January 12, 2016                             Special Called Meeting Minutes                          Page 1 of 1 

 
City of Claremont Special Called Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, January 12, 2016 
 
A Special Called meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the Council Chambers located at 
Claremont City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Tuesday, January 12, 2016. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor Shawn Brown, 
Councilmember Dale Sherrill, Councilmember Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Dayne Miller, 
Councilmember Lee Miller and Councilmember David Morrow.   
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Catherine Renbarger, 
City Clerk Wendy Helms, Police Chief Gary Bost, Fire Chief Bart Travis, Public Services Director Tom 
Winkler, Recreation Coordinator Michael Orders, Finance Officer Stephanie Corn, and City Planner 
Elinor Hiltz. 
 
Others in attendance were: Anthony Starr, WPCOG and Scott Ramsey. 
 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Shawn R. Brown called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 5:48 p.m. 
 
Anthony Starr with the WPCOG facilitated the meeting.  Council reviewed core values and the City 
mission statement.  Council participated in various discussions to decide a path for Claremont to grow 
and provide services for its citizens. 
 
 ADJOURN 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.  Second 
was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 
     
 
____________________________    
Shawn R. Brown, Mayor       
 
 
Attested: 
 
____________________________ 
Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT 7 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Citizen Concerns 
 
Open the floor for comments or questions from the audience. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: No action needed    

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 8A 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Budget Transfers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Informational, no action needed. 

 
 
 
 





EXHIBIT 8B 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Ratify Lease Agreement with Pöppelmann Properties USA 
LLC  
 
In order for Pöppelmann Plastics to begin receiving rail shipments from Norfolk 
Southern, Pöppelmann and Norfolk Southern must execute a siding agreement. 
However, before the siding agreement can be executed a lease agreement between 
Pöppelmann and the City must be executed.  The lease agreement allows Pöppelmann 
Plastics to lease the spur and execute the siding agreement.  
 
The City executed a lease agreement with Pöppelmann in July of 2012. Pöppelmann 
executed the same lease agreement in July of 2015 but re-dated it July 1, 2015.  The 
lease terms are otherwise identical.  To account for the discrepancy in date of execution, 
it is recommended that the City now ratify a version with the 2015 date of execution. A 
copy of the lease agreement is attached for your review.   
 
 
Recommendation: Make a Motion to Ratify and authorize the execution of the re-dated 
Executed Lease Agreement as previously with Pöppelmann Properties USA, LLC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















































  Item 9A 
  

CITY OF CLAREMONT 
  

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 
Proclamation 

 
PANTHER PRIDE WEEK IN CLAREMONT 

 
   
WHEREAS, the Carolina Panthers are inspiring community pride on and off the field; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Carolina Panthers’ record is the best in the NFL; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Carolina Panthers are the NFC South Division Champions for the third year in a row; and 
 
WHEREAS, the “#KeepPounding” message from former player and Coach Sam Mills continues to resonate in 
our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Carolina Panthers are bringing a positive national spotlight on the City of Charlotte and the 
surrounding area, using the NFL as the stage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Claremont fully support the Panthers and encourages citizens to show their “Panther 
Pride” 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Shawn R. Brown Mayor of Claremont do hereby proclaim “Carolina Panther Pride 
Week” in Claremont and commend its observance to all citizens, by showing their Panther Pride and wearing 
their Panther gear or Panther colors of black, blue or white. 
 
WITNESS MY HAND and the official Seal o f the City of Claremont. 
 
 
Adopted this 1st day of February 2016. 
      
 

 
 
 
   __________________________ 

        Shawn R. Brown, Mayor     
 



EXHIBIT 9B  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016  
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  2014-2015 Audit Presentation Information only; No action 
Requested    
 
During this presentation, Melanie Starr will give Council a brief overview of the 2014-
2015 completed audit.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Information only; No action Requested    

 



EXHIBIT 9C  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016  
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Information only; No action Requested    
 
As a part of the Planning Board’s work to update the Comprehensive Plan, Tayler 
Dellinger with the Western Piedmont Council of Governments recently compiled a 
Demographic and Economic Data Profile for the City of Claremont. Tayler is planning 
to briefly review this information with Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Information only; No action Requested    

 



By 
Taylor Dellinger  

Western Piedmont Council of Governments 

Prepared For: 

Claremont Demographics and 
Economic Data Profile 

Claremont City Council Meeting   
February 1, 2016 



Claremont 
Population Trends 



Source: 1980-2010 Census, US Census Bureau and NC Office of Management and Budget, 2015.  

Claremont Population, 1980-2013 



Location 
2000   

Census 
2010    

Census 
Change 
2000-10 

%   
Inc. 

2013 
Estimate 

Change 
2010-13 

%    
Inc. 

Claremont 1,060 1,352 292 27.5 1,404 52 3.8 
Catawba 
County 

141,686 154,358 12,672 8.9 155,411 1,053 0.7 

Hickory 
MSA 

341,851 365,497 23,646 6.5 364,870 -627 -0.2 

NC 8,049,313 9,535,483 1,486,170 18.5 9,861,952 326,469 3.4 
US 281,421,906 308,745,538 27,323,632 9.7 316,497,531 7,751,993 2.5 

Population Comparisons, 2000-2013 

Source: 2000-2010 Census, US Census Bureau and NC Office of Management and Budget, 2015.  



Source: 2000-2010 Census, US Census Bureau.  

Age Group 
2000 

Census 
% of  
Pop. 

2010 
Census 

% of  
Pop. 

Change 
2000-10 

% Change 
2000-10 

White 993 95.7 1,260 93.2 267 26.9 

African American 23 2.2 25 1.8 2 8.7 

American Indian 1 0.1 1 0.1 0 0.0 

Asian American 9 0.9 16 1.2 7 77.8 

Two or More Races 5 0.5 24 1.8 19 380.0 

Hispanic (Any Race) 31 3.0 48 3.6 17 54.8 

White, (Not Hispanic) 969 93.4 1,241 91.8 272 28.1 

Claremont Population by       
Race/Ethnic Group, 2000-2010 



Source: 2000-2010 Census, US Census Bureau.  

Claremont Population by Age Group, 2000-2010 

Age Group 
2000 

Census 
2010 

Census 
Change 
2000-10 

% Change 
2000-10 

Under 5 Years 55 77 22 40.0 
5 to 9 Years 66 95 29 43.9 
10 to 14 Years 65 84 19 29.2 
15 to 19 Years 52 64 12 23.1 
20 to 24 Years 64 63 -1 -1.6 
25 to 34 Years 175 182 7 4.0 
35 to 44 Years 153 205 52 34.0 
45 to 54 Years 160 195 35 21.9 
55 to 59 Years 59 98 39 66.1 
60 to 64 Years 50 93 43 86.0 
65 to 74 Years 79 110 31 39.2 
75 to 84 Years 54 59 5 9.3 
85 Years & Over 6 27 21 350.0 
Total 1,038 1,352 314 30.3 



Median Age Comparison, 1990-2010 

Location 1990 2000 % Change 2010 % Change 
Claremont 35.6 38.2 7.3 40.2 5.2 
Catawba Co. 34.3 36.1 5.2 39.6 9.7 
Hickory MSA 34.6 36.7 6.1 40.5 10.4 
NC 33.2 35.3 6.4 37.4 5.9 
US 32.9 35.3 7.3 37.2 5.4 

Source: 1990-2010 Census, US Census Bureau.  



Age Group 
2015 

Estimate 
2035 

Projection 
Change 
2015-35 

% Change 
2015-35 

Under 5 Years 8,863 9,667 804 9.1 
5 to 9 Years 9,732 9,502 -230 -2.4 
10 to 14 Years 10,364 9,427 -937 -9.0 
15 to 19 Years 10,449 9,336 -1,113 -10.7 
20 to 24 Years 10,373 9,388 -985 -9.5 
25 to 34 Years 17,248 20,612 3,364 19.5 
35 to 44 Years 20,014 21,158 1,144 5.7 
45 to 54 Years 22,730 17,742 -4,988 -21.9 
55 to 59 Years 11,055 9,256 -1,799 -16.3 
60 to 64 Years 9,758 10,119 361 3.7 
65 to 74 Years 15,529 19,461 3,932 25.3 
75 to 84 Years 7,372 13,020 5,648 76.6 
85 Years and Over 2,699 4,538 1,839 68.1 
Total 156,186 163,226 7,040 4.5 

Catawba County Population Projections by                
Age Group, 2015-2035 

Source: NC Office of Management and Budget, 2015.  



Claremont  
Household Income 

and Poverty 
Levels 



Claremont Income Statistics,       
2009-2013 ACS 

Households 
2009-2013 

ACS 
% of  

Households 

Total Households 555 100.0 

Households Earning Less than $25,000 109 19.6 

Households Earning between $25,000 
and $50,000 

164 29.5 

Households Earning between $50,000 
and $100,000 

193 34.8 

Households Earning more than 
$100,000 

89 16.0 

Median Household Income $50,450   

Source: 2009-2013 American Community Survey, US Census. 
 



Poverty Rate Comparisons, 2009-2013 ACS 

Source: 2009-2013 American Community Survey, US Census. 
 



Claremont and 
Catawba County 
Employment and 

Wages  



Claremont Employment Status for Population   
Age 16 and Over, 2009-2013 ACS 

Source: 2009-2013 American Community Survey, US Census Bureau. 



Claremont Employment by Industry, 
2009-2013 ACS 

Source: 2009-2013 American Community Survey, US Census Bureau. 

Industry 
2009-2013 

ACS 
% of  Employed 

Population 
Employed Population 637 100.0 

Agriculture 0 0.0 

Construction 22 3.5 

Manufacturing 163 25.6 

Wholesale Trade 20 3.1 

Retail Trade 76 11.9 

Transportation/Warehousing/Utilities 24 3.8 

Information 17 2.7 

Finance/Insurance/ Real Estate 19 3.0 

Professional Services 66 10.4 

Education and Health Care 150 23.5 

Arts/ Entertainment/Recreation 22 3.5 

Other Services 36 5.7 

Public Administration 22 3.5 



Claremont   
Educational Attainment 



Educational Attainment for Population  
Age 25 and Over, 2009-2013 ACS 

Source: 2009-2013 American Community Survey, US Census. 
 



Claremont          
Housing Trends 



Location 1990 2000 
Change 

1990-2000 
%  

Inc. 
2010 

Change 
2000-2010 

% 
Inc. 

Claremont 402 456 54 13.4 646 190 41.7 

Catawba 
County 

49,192 59,919 10,727 21.8 67,886 7,967 13.3 

Hickory 
MSA 

121,418 144,874 23,456 19.3 162,613 17,739 12.2 

NC 2,818,193 3,523,944 705,751 25.0 4,327,528 803,584 22.8 

US 102,263,678 115,904,641 13,640,963 13.3 131,704,730 15,800,089 13.6 

Housing Unit Comparisons, 1990-2010 

Source: 1990-2010 Census, US Census Bureau.  



Catawba Co. Single-Family (Site-Built) Permits, 2007-2014 

Source: Burke County Building Inspections and WPCOG Data Center.  



Claremont Housing Distribution, 2009-2013 ACS 

Source: 2009-2013 American Community Survey, US Census. 
 



Percent Renter Occupied Units, 1990-2010 

Location 1990 2000 2010 
Claremont 28.4 24.7 24.4 
Catawba Co. 25.2 25.5 29.6 
Hickory MSA 25.3 25.7 28.1 
NC 28.6 27.2 33.3 
US 35.8 33.8 34.9 

Source: 1990-2010 Census, US Census Bureau.  



Median Value of Owner-Occupied Units,         
1990-2010 

Location 1990 2000 
% 

Change 
2009-13 

ACS 
% 

Change 
Claremont $59,700 $104,500 75.0 $140,000 34.0 
Catawba Co. $62,300 $103,000 65.3 $130,200 26.4 
Hickory MSA $50,600 $93,500 84.8 $120,100 28.4 
NC $65,300 $108,300 65.8 $153,600 41.8 
US $78,500 $119,600 52.4 $176,700 47.7 

Source: 1990-2010 Census, US Census Bureau.  



Questions? 



EXHIBIT 10A 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Gary Bost, Police Chief 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Surplus Items to be Auctioned via GovDeals 
 
Two police cars are scheduled to be auctioned on Gov Deals. Both police cars have 
roughly 80,000 miles and were no longer in service.  One car has significant damage 
due to mold. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Approve Resolution 15-15 declaring these items surplus. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

CITY OF CLAREMONT 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
RESOLUTION 15-15 

___________________________________________________________________ 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the City Council that certain property owned by the City of Claremont 
is dilapidated and in need of repair or replacement; and 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the cost of repair is beyond the value of the pieces of equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is desirous of disposing of the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statue 160a-270 enables municipalities to conduct auctions of real or 
personal property electronically by authorizing the establishment of an electronic auction services. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Claremont that the following 
pieces of property shall be declared surplus property and sold via GovDeals online auction service: 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to dispose 
of said equipment in accordance with law and may engage G.S. 160a-267 for the sale of said equipment listed 
above. 
 
Adopted this 1st day of February 2016. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 
 
Attested:  _____________________ 
                 Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 

2005 Ford Crown Victoria               VIN: 2FAFP71W45X123073                 Mileage- 79,126 

2007 Ford Crown Victoria           VIN: 2FAFP71W27X128484                 Mileage- 81,525 



EXHIBIT 10B 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Bart Travis, Fire Chief 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested: Surplus Items to be Auctioned private sale. 
 
(4) Motorola walkie talkies have been placed out of service at the fire department.  
These radios are VHF and the fire department has moved to 800 MHz radios.  
Bethlehem Fire Department would like to purchase the radios.  A price has been 
negotiated at $225 each. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Approve Resolution 16-15 declaring these items surplus, and make 
them available to Bethlehem Fire Department for purchase at the set rate of $225 each. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

CITY OF CLAREMONT 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
RESOLUTION 16-15 

___________________________________________________________________ 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the City Council that certain property owned by the City of Claremont 
is dilapidated and in need of repair or replacement; and 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the cost of repair is beyond the value of the pieces of equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is desirous of disposing of the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statue 160A-274(b) Any governmental unit may, upon such terms and 
conditions as it deems wise, with or without consideration, exchange with, lease to, lease from, sell to, or 
purchase from any other governmental unit any interest in real or personal property. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Claremont that the following 
pieces of property shall be declared surplus property and be sold to Bethlehem Fire Department at the price of 
$225 each radio, with no chargers and no extra batteries. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to dispose 
of said equipment in accordance with law and may engage G.S. 160a-267 for the sale of said equipment listed 
above. 
 
Adopted this 1st day of February 2016. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 
 
Attested:  _____________________ 
                 Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 

Motorola HT 1250 w/SM  Serial #749HFWR464 

Motorola HT 1250 w/SM  Serial #749HFWR463 

Motorola HT 1250 w/SM  Serial # 749HFWR457 

Motorola HT 1250 w/SM  Serial #749HFWR455 



EXHIBIT 10C 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Approve Ordinance 09-15 Amending FY2015-2016 Budget  
 
This item amends the General Fund, Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund and the 
Water & Sewer Fund. This amendment:  

• Reduces $130,000 of revenues and expenditures from the Water & Sewer 
Capital Reserve Fund. Since the pump station project is no longer scheduled to 
occur in 2015/2016, this amendment reverses plans to use Water & Sewer 
Capital Reserve Funds.  

• Transfers $10,000 from wastewater maintenance capital outlay to the NC DENR 
fees line item. This transfer is needed as a result of the fines received due to our 
wastewater treatment plants.    

• Increases revenue and expenditures in the General Fund by $35,000 to account 
for a recently awarded grant by the Carpenter Foundation to the Rescue Squad. 
The grant funds must be distributed to the City who will then pass on those funds 
to the Rescue Squad.  

• Amends revenue estimates to decrease loan proceeds by $237,765 and increases 
fund balance appropriation by $237,765. This amendment is needed as the loan 
proceeds for the fire truck were received on June 28 and were therefore received 
in the FY 2014/15 budget, ending up in Fund Balance. The City has sufficient 
funds in Fund Balance to account for this amendment and still have ample 
reserve funds.  

 
 
Recommendation: Approve Ordinance 09-15.  

 
 
 
 
 



City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 09-15 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT AMENDING CLAREMONT  
MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

General Fund 
Revenues    Increase Decrease 
Loan Proceeds      
10.3933.0000     $237,765 
Total     $237,765 
      
Revenues      
Appropriated Fund Balance      
10.3990.0000     $237,765  
Total    $237,765  
      
Revenues      
Rescue Grant Restricted Revenues    
10.3490.0500   $35,000  
Total   $35,000  
     
Expenditures     
Rescue Squad Grant Funds     
10.5300.8300   $35,000  
Total   $35,000  
 
  
Water & Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Revenues   Increase Decrease 
Appropriated Fund Balance     
71.3990.0000    $130,000 
Total    $130,000 
     
Expenditures     
Transfer to Water & Sewer Fund    
71.3990.9200   $130,000 
Total    $130,000 
  
 
 
 
  



Water & Sewer Fund 
Revenues   Increase Decrease 
Transfer from Other Funds     
30.3980.0000     $130,000 
Total    $130,000 
     
Expenditures     
Wastewater Capital     
30.8250.7400     $140,000 
Total     $140,000 
     
NCDENR Fees     
8220.0490   $10,000  
Total   $10,000  
 
INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on 
February 1, 2016.  
 
ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  
February 1, 2016. 

_______________________, 
MAYOR Shawn R. Brown  

ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
Wendy Helms, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
__________________________ 
Bob Grant, City Attorney  
 



EXHIBIT 10D 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Authorize Grant Application for North Carolina Industrial 
Development Grant Fund for Substance Inc. Sewer Project 
 
The NC Department of Commerce’s NC Rural Infrastructure Authority has set aside 
$120,975 in funds for necessary sewer to the proposed 17.5 acre site for Substance, Inc. 
in the Business Park. This resolution will authorize the City to submit a formal 
application to the Department of Commerce. The grant application requires a match 
form the City of $40,325. Please see the attached memo from Leah Martin with the 
WPCOG for additional detail.  
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve Resolution 17-15  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
Meeting Date:  Monday, February 1, 2016  

To: City of Claremont City Council, Manager and Clerk  
From: Leah Martin, Sr. Planner 
Re:   Authorizing Resolution for Grant Application for a NC Department of Commerce 

Industrial Development Fund Utility Account (IDF) for the Substance, Inc. Sewer Project 
    
 
Project Summary:  As the Council is well aware, the NC Department of Commerce’s NC Rural 
Infrastructure Authority has set aside $120,975 in funds to provide necessary sewer to the 
proposed 17.5 acre site Substance, Inc. is proposing to purchase in Claremont’s International 
Industrial Park.  Due to growth, the Company needs additional manufacturing space and is 
planning an estimated investment of $3.4 million in building and M&E to construct a 54,000 sf 
building (concrete tilt-up with expansion wall) that is expandable up to 200,000 sf.  The 
estimated total sewer grant project estimate is $161,300.   In addition to Substance 
Incorporated, this gravity sewer outfall could allow for service to additional acres of contiguous 
industrial property.   
 
Grant Terms and Security: Substance, Inc. is required by the IDF program to contractually 
commit to their private investment through a Legally Binding Commitment (LBC).     However, if 
they were to not make their private investment the City would be required to seek the grant 
funds from Substance, Inc. for repayment to NC Commerce. 
 
Fiscal / Budgetary Effect:   The grant application as it is now proposed requires a match from 
the City of Claremont of $40,325.  This exceeds the $40,000 committed to Substance Inc.  for 
the sewer and the company has agreed to participate in any cost beyond the $40,000.   
 
Action To Be Taken:  If the Board wishes to submit the formal application for the grant, the 
Council must adopt the Authorizing Resolution approving submittal of a formal application.     
 
Please do not hesitate to call me at 485-4252 if you have any questions.   
 

 

 



 
  

CITY OF CLAREMONT 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
RESOLUTION 17-15 

___________________________________________________________________ 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING NORTH CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

GRANT FUND 
 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, that a grant from the North Carolina Department of Commerce be made to 

Claremont, North Carolina for Substance, Inc. project. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City will administer this grant in accordance with the rules 
and regulations of the Department of Commerce. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City will administer this grant through the City Manager’s 
Office and with assistance from the Western Piedmont Council of Governments. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the grant will be monitored quarterly to assure compliance with 
this proposal and the Department of Commerce regulations.   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the amount of the grant application will be $120,975 with a 
match of no less than 20% or $40,325.   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Catherine Renbarger, City Manager, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of Claremont with the State of North Carolina for 
a grant from the Industrial Development Fund. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Catherine Renbarger, City Manager, and successors so titled, is 

hereby authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such 
other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 
 
Adopted this 1st day of February 2016. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 
 
Attested:  _____________________ 
                 Wendy L. Helms, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT 10E 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Elinor Hitlz, City Planner 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Call for Public Hearing on Rezoning 
 
On January 25, 2016 the Planning Board recommended rezoning 4883 North Oxford St 
from Community Business (B-2) to Highway Business (B-3). The applicant’s immediate 
proposal is to sell cars in addition to repairing cars on that property, but in the long term, 
rezoning the property to B-3 allows motels, big box stores, and other uses that are 
currently not permitted. The B-3 list of permitted uses is in the attached staff report. 
Claremont’s Comprehensive Plan recommends the change. A copy of the future land 
use plan which demonstrates that the City intended for almost all of North Oxford Street 
to become Highway Business is included in the staff report as well. North Oxford Street 
is appropriate for high-intensity uses because it has a high traffic count and is not 
residential. The attached staff report was presented at the Planning Board meeting and is 
attached for reference only.   
 
If Council calls for the public hearing, in mid-February a rezoning sign will be posted on 
the property and the adjacent owners will be notified of the public hearing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Call for Public Hearing  

                     March 7, 2016 at 7:00 in Council Chambers 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 10F 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016     
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Amend 2015-2016 Audit Contract 
 
The original audit contract with Melanie Starr called for an audit completion date of 
October 31, 2015. However, the audit was not completed until January 29, 2016. The 
Local Government Commission requires an amended contract be adopted if submitted 
after the due date.  The amended contract is attached, including an explanation from the 
auditor as to why the submission was delayed. The monetary amount of the contract has 
not changed. In addition, the City worked closely with the Local Government 
Commission to inform them of our situation throughout the process. For your reference, 
the original audit contract is also attached.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve Amendment to Audit Contract   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























EXHIBIT 10G 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016  
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Michael Orders, Parks and Recreation Coordinator 
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Information only; No action Requested    
 
This presentation will review the Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Plan originally 
presented to Council in March of 2014 by the Western Piedmont Council of 
Governments and the City of Claremont Parks and Recreation Committee and solicit 
direction from Council. A copy of the Parks and Recreation Plan is attached.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Information only; No action Requested    

 

































































































EXHIBIT 10H 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016  
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Update on Wastewater Treatment Needs Study- Information 
only; No action Requested    
 
During this item, staff will update Council on the progress being made with the 
Wastewater Treatment needs study.  Wooten will also be on hand to answer any 
questions about the identified alternatives.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Information only; No action Requested    

 



EXHIBIT 11 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Department Dashboard  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Informational     

 
 
 
 



Month YTD Month YTD % In % Out 
508 508 Calls for Service 30 30 43% 55%
123 123 Working Fires 3 3 52% 36%
62 62 Training Hours 222 222
9 9 Prevention Programs 29 29
6 6 Structure Responses 8 8 Month YTD 

Warrants 18 18 EMS Calls 7 7 Calls for Service 80 80
Open Cases 5 5 Training Hours 24 24
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD 
Vehicles Serviced 17 17 Water Turned Off 11 11 Total Zoning Permits 0 0
Recycling %-Dec 2015 72% Water Taps 1 1 Commercial Projects 0 0
Solid Waste Tonnage 48.53 48.53 Water Purchased 0 New Dwelling Units 0 0
Street Lights Replaced 9 9 Water Sold 6,525,171 Customers w/ Inquiries 11 11
Work Orders 21 21 McLin  WWTP Avg. 0 New Plats Reviewed 1 1
Sewer Line Jetted 1,126 1,126 North WWTP Avg. 0 Plng Brd Agenda Items 4 4
Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Officer Bumgarner made 1 arrest for Assault with a Deadly Weapon. Officer Russell 
made 3 arrest for poss. Of Meth and seized over 1/2 oz. aslo charged 2 for poss. Of 
Marijuana and seized over 5 grams. Cpl. Martin and Officer Bumgarner participated 
in Career Day at Claremont Elementary School.
Chief Bost , Cpl. Martin and Officer Kirby all attended Intox Re-Certification class.

Bottom Floor of Jessup Klein building has been 
cleaned out for inspection.

Performed sewer line aerials, creek bank wash outs. Action Plan 2016

16th Annual Pig Picking and Poker Run to be held in 
April.

Rescue Squad 

Public Works Utility Dept. Planning & Zoning Dept.

Claremont January 2016 Dashboard Report 

Calls Answered 

Citations Served 

Warnings 

Number of Arrests 

Accidents 

 Police Dept. Fire Dept. Financials 

General Fund 

Water/Sewer Fund 

8 Structural Responses, Personnel per call 11.8 
average.



1 
 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD  
MINUTES 

January 25, 2016 
 

Members Present Members Absent Staff Present 
Robert Smith Nick Colson Elinor Hiltz, Planner 
Jeff Barkley 
Rupert Little 

 Catherine Renbarger, City Manager 

Gene Monday   
Larry Pannell 
Todd Setzer 

  

Crystal Clark    
  
Call to Order  
 
Chairman Robert Smith called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm.  
 
Adopt Agenda 
  
Jeff Barkley moved and Gene Monday seconded the motion to adopt the agenda. The 
agenda was unanimously adopted.   
 
Approval of November 16, 2015 Planning Board Minutes 
 
Larry Pannell moved and Rupert Little seconded the motion to approve the minutes. The 
minutes were unanimously approved.  
 
4883 North Oxford St Rezoning 
 
Elinor Hiltz presented the staff report for rezoning 4883 North Oxford St (Town and 
Country Tire) from Community Business (B-2) to Highway Business (B-3). The property 
was currently a car repair shop. The owner wanted to sell cars in addition to repairing 
cars on the property. Since the business is nonconforming, the owner needed to request a 
rezoning for the permission to sell cars. The planner read the new uses that would be 
allowed under Highway Business zoning in the future if the car repair shop were to close. 
The traffic count would rise by 10 trips per day if the entire property was converted to a 
car sales lot. Claremont’s Future Land Use Map supported the change.  
 
Chairman Robert Smith read the following statements “High-traffic areas such as North 
Oxford Street are appropriate for highway businesses because they are convenient to 
regional shoppers and residents.” and the board “recommends approval because this 
amendment is consistent with the Land Development Plan”.  
 



2 
 

Gene Monday moved to approve the rezoning and Jeff Barkely seconded. The rezoning 
was unanimously recommended by the Board.  
 
Residential Architectural Standards Zoning Text Amendment 
 
The State legislature recently passed a bill disallowing local governments to regulate 
architecture in single family houses and duplexes. Claremont needed to delete a number 
of architectural standards in order to comply with the new law. Planner Elinor Hiltz 
presented passages that were definitely not in compliance in red text and debatable 
passages in purple text.  
 
As such, the Planning Board recommended deleting certain passages but they requested 
revisions on a number of other passages. The Planner will make changes and bring 
another proposal back to the Planning Board in February.  
 
The Planning Board wanted to fit carports in the “garages and parking” section of the 
ordinance and allow carports of any material in sideyards. This would be a new 
allowance in Claremont. A section that said “a detached garage may be located only in 
the rear yard” was changed to say “rear or side yard”.  
 
The Planning Board liked the rule that new buildings must match the “massing and scale” 
of existing buildings on the street and wanted to keep that regulation in all districts. 
 
Elinor Hiltz was asked to research how to regulate “main pedestrian access” to a house 
and settle the question of which direction a house faces, legally and in practice. The 
Board wanted houses to be visually primarily oriented towards the streetfront and not be 
only oriented towards the parking areas (if the parking areas were not the streetfront).  
 
After finding that this text amendment is not urgent to any citizens with pending cases, 
Crystal Clark moved to table this amendment until the next month. Jeff Barkely seconded 
the motion, and the Board voted unanimously to table. 
 
Protest Petition Text Amendment 
 
The state legislature also changed the “protest petition” statutes. A protest petition is 
petition that the opposition to a rezoning signs. With the new state law, if 5 percent of 
adjacent property owners sign a petition then a ¾ vote of Council is required to approve a 
rezoning (instead of a simple majority vote). Before the legislature changed the statute, 
20 percent of adjacent property owners had to sign a protest petition for it to be valid. 
 
Chairman Robert Smith read the statement of public interest and the consistency 
statement: “rezoning and protest petitions are useful tools for land-use planning and in 
the public interest” and “I move to recommend approval because this amendment is 
required by state law”.  
 
The Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval of this amendment.   
 
Election of Officers 



3 
 

Jeff Barkely nominated to keep Robert Smith as Planning Board Chair. Gene Monday 
seconded and the Board voted unanimously on the matter. Crystal Clark recommended 
that Larry Pannell remain as Vice-Chair and Jeff Barkely seconded. The vote to keep Mr. 
Pannell as Vice-Chair was also unanimous. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ACTIVITIES 
 

Transportation Presentation  
 John Marshall, Transportation Coordinator for the Greater Hickory MPO,  

presented Claremont’s current and future transportation projects to the committee. 
Compared to other municipalities in the region Claremont has a great proportion 
of proposed connectors. Mr. Marshall said those types of projects are likely to be 
built through public-private partnerships-the way the Centennial Extension is 
being built today. Mr. Marshall talked about congestion and turn lane projects at 
Exit 135.  
 
Establish Transportation Objectives for the City 
The committee indicated two sidewalk projects that are priorities to them and they 
commented on areas with drainage problems and areas that need traffic signals 
and turn lanes. The Planner will pursue the committee’s ideas in the 
Comprehensive Plan and with City Administration. 
 

Next Meeting Date: February 15, 2016 at 7:00 
 
Adjourn 
 
The group officially adjourned at 8:38 before establishing transportation objectives for 
the City. 
  
 
 
_______________________           _______________________ 
Robert Smith, Chairman           Elinor Hiltz, Planner  
 
 



EXHIBIT 12 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  City Managers Report  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Informational     

 
 
 



 



EXHIBIT 13 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: February 1, 2016 
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Catherine Renbarger, City Manager  
 
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Closed Session  
 
 
Council needs to hold a closed session in reference to G.S. 143-318.11(6) Personnel. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Motion needed to go into closed session    

 
 
 
 


	1-AGENDA
	3-RFBA Consent Agenda
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	4-January 4, 2016 Regular
	5-January 12 2016 Special
	6-RFBA Citizen Comments
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	7-RFBA Old Business
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	9-Budget Transfers
	10-Poppelmann Lease Agreement
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	11-Popplemann Lease Agreement
	13- Proclamation- Panther Pride Week
	14-RFBA Audit Presentation
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	16-Demographic and Ecnomic Data Profil
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	17-ClaremontDemographicProfile_2_1_16
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23

	18-RFBA Resolution 15-15 Surplus Items
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	19-Resolution 15-15 Surplus Property
	20-RFBA Resolution 16-15 Surplus Items
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	21-Resolution 16-15 Surplus Property
	22-RFBA Ordinance 09-15 Budget AMendment
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	23-Ordinance 09-15 Amending the FY 16 Budget
	24.1-RFCA IDF Grant
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	24-IDF Substance Attachment
	25-Resolution 17-15 Authorizing NC Industrial Development Grant Fund
	26-RFBA Call for Public Hearing
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	28-RFCA Audit Contract
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	29- Amended Audit Contract
	29.1-Orginal Audit Contract
	30-RFBA Parks and Rec Presentation
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	31-claremont rec plan
	32- RFBA Wastewater Needs Study Update
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	33-RFBA  Dashboard
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	34-Dashboard Report copy
	Sheet1
	Sheet2

	35.1Draft Minutes Planning Board
	35-RFBA  City Manager Report
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

	37-RFBA Closed Session
	REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION


